Town of West Bath

Comprehensive Plan Task Force Meeting Minutes
Monday, April 25, 2022

Comp Plan Task Force: Town Staff:  Karly Perry, Town Clerk
David Hennessey, Chair Max Johnstone (MCOG)
Bob Weir, Vice Chair (absent)

Sandra Basgall Select Board: None present

Paul Coombs

Darlene Estabrook
Leah Zartarian

I Call to Order at 6:00 pm
Il. Attendance and Establishment of Quorum: A quorum was determined
M. Pledge of Allegiance: Recited

V. Approval of Minutes:

Moved by Coombs to approve, seconded by Estabrook, motion carried unanimously.

V. Committee Comments: None
VI. Business Items

1. Update on the Implementation Plan Sections

Johnstone presented the revised Implementation Plan to the Committee and began a page-by-page
review of the document beginning with Part | - 1.

Estabrook asked if “town” should be capitalized, to which her and Basgall agreed that town should be
capitalized when referencing West Bath specifically, to which Johnston agreed to edit documents.

Estabrook added that the last paragraph of Part | — 1 should read “ Boards” and Committees’”
Johnstone reviewed edits in Part | — 2 to paragraphs three and five.

Estabrook asked if paragraph three should have an ongoing time frame or long-term, to which Johnstone
and Hennessey agreed that ongoing is appropriate because this action should be in place prior to
approval of the revised plan.

Hennessey suggested that paragraph six should be ongoing rather than short-term, to which Johnstone
agreed it should.

Johnston reviewed Part | — 3, to which no edits had made since the last review.

Basgall asked if standards and references are one item, to which Johnstone agreed to add a comma after
standards.

Johnstone reviewed Part | — 4, to which no edits had made since the last review.

Estabrook asked if paragraph one should read State roads rather than highways as there is only one
highway in West Bath. Discussion followed on how to better describe roadways without confusing the
matter because there is a State Road in West Bath. The Committee agreed to refer to highways as “State
maintained roads” and non-highway roads as “local roads”.

Estabrook stated that contrary to paragraph six, elderly housing is not currently permitted in all areas
of Town. Johnstone agreed to reword paragraph six to “all areas of Town with the exclusion of the
Urban Development Park”.



Comprehensive Plan Task Force
Monday, April 25, 2022

Johnstone reviewed edits in Part | — 5 to paragraph four, noting that State Legislature has recently
passed LD2003 which may make this paragraph obsolete. The Committee agreed to remove the
language.

Estabrook stated that in paragraph one the use of the word “pursuing” is used twice. Johnstone agreed
that language be rewritten to reword the second sentence to “pursuing programs, such as Community
Development Block Grants”.

Estabrook asked if “town meeting” should be capitalized in paragraph three, to which Johnstone agreed.
Johnstone reviewed Part | — 6, to which no edits had made since the last review.

Basgall expressed concern that paragraph six does not make sense. Johnstone clarified that this action
item is intended to distinguish between which types of business require Planning Board review.
Discussion followed as to the interpretation of the wording, to which Johnstone added that the section
is required by the State but can be reworded if preferred. After further discussion, Basgall suggested
that “light industry and commerce” be removed, to which Johnstone agreed.

Johnstone reviewed Part | — 7, to which there were no edits and no additional comments.
Johnstone reviewed Part | — 8, to which there were no edits.

Hennessey asked if paragraph five should be ongoing rather than long-term. Basgall asked if the
paragraph should include groundwater testing, which Johnstone agreed is the intent. Discussion
followed with the Committee in agreement that the language implies active monitoring. Hennessey
suggested rewording the entire paragraph to “Work to correct any identified pollution sources relating
to faulty septic systems and ground water.” to which Johnstone agreed.

Johnstone reviewed Part | — 9, to which there were no edits and no additional comments.

Johnstone reviewed Part | — 10, to which there were no edits. He noted that paragraph six should include
a comma after anchorages.

Basgall observed that most actions address commercial uses but not recreation. Johnstone noted actions
addressing moorings, boat ramps, and other recreational uses.

Johnstone reviewed an edit in Part | — 11 to a short-term time frame for the final action item, to which
there were no edits and no additional comments.

Johnstone reviewed edits in Part | — 12, which include examples of uses in paragraph one and an
amendment to the time frame for paragraph seven.

Estabrook asked if the Assessor will share responsibility in paragraph seven, which Johnstone
confirmed he will not.

Johnstone reviewed Part | — 13, to which there were no edits. Coombs asked Estabrook if she was
satisfied with the language in paragraph six, to which she stated that she is satisfied with language but
that the Planning Board will need a list of archaeological and historic sites. Johnstone stated that this
item would most likely come into play when addressing undeveloped property wherein the Planning
Board, or more appropriately the applicant, would reach out to the State for review.

Johnstone reviewed edits in Part | — 14, which include corrections to responsibilities and a minor edit
to paragraph three.

Zartarian asked for clarification on where the Foster M. Pratt Senior Citizens Hall is. Hennessey stated
that this is the full name for the Senior Center. The Committee agreed to remove “and the like” from
the paragraph.



Comprehensive Plan Task Force
Monday, April 25, 2022

Zartarian suggested that for responsibilities of paragraph five Community Crew be expanded to West
Bath School or WBS Community Crew as many residents may not know that this group is synonymous
with a PTO/PTA, to which Johnstone agreed.

Johnstone reviewed the edit to Part | — 15 to add “local land trusts” to paragraph three.

Coombs asked if paragraph one is something that the Town is currently doing. Johnstone clarified that
this paragraph addresses the Select Board’s plan to create a Recreation Committee, which should be in
place prior to approval of the revised Comp Plan.

Zartarian added that the word “the” in paragraph three should be removed.

Johnstone reviewed Part | — 16, to which there were no edits. He noted that paragraph five should not
have Select Board crossed out. Hennessey suggested that the Sagadahoc Sheriff’s Department should
be added to responsibilities for this paragraph.

Johnstone reviewed Part | — 17, to which there were no edits. Basgall asked for clarification on the
utility districts for paragraph one, which are included under responsibility.

Johnstone reviewed Part | — 18, which includes the addition of the Assessing Agent to paragraph four.
The Committee had no additional comments.

Johnstone stated that he would make the corrections discusses and send the revised copy to Town Hall
for distribution to the Committee. The Implementation Plan will now be shelved until final review.

Survey Update
Johnstone asked if there were any changes to Page 1, to which Zartarian suggested Poland’s contact
information be included at the top of the page.

Johnstone asked if there were any changes to Page 2. Zartarian asked if there were any questions in the
survey specific to recycling or composting. Johnstone agreed to edit question 13 to include recycling
and composting.

Johnstone asked if there were any changes to Page 3. Discussion followed defining scenic views.

Basgall asked for clarification on question 17, to which discussion followed on Zoning Ordinance
standards. The Committee agreed that both 17 a. and b. should reference both standards and restrictions.

Johnstone asked if there were any changes to Page 4. Basgall asked why question 19 is separate for
guestion 18, to which discussion followed on the language and order for questions 17, 18, and 19.
Johnstone flagged this section and agreed to revisit.

Basgall suggested that there be two different types of brackets in question 22.

Johnstone asked if there were any changes to Page 5. Hennessey asked if question 27 should be
included, to which the Committee agreed it isn’t necessary.

Johnstone asked if anyone had issues with the current formatting, to which there were no comments.
He then discussed how the survey should be distributed and if the Committee would like to make the
survey available online though a site such as Survey Monkey. The Committee agreed that an online
survey would be helpful including links to both an online survey and printable survey on the Town
website. Perry recommended advertising the survey on the Fire Hall sign and in the West Bath
Historical Society’s newsletter.

Johnstone asked for additional clarification on questions 17, 18, and 19. The Committee agreed to
remove question 19 and agreed that 17a. and 17b. should read “standards/restrictions”.



VII.

VIII.

Comprehensive Plan Task Force
Monday, April 25, 2022

Johnstone agreed to amend the survey as discussed then send the revision to Town Hall for distribution
to the Committee. Discussion followed as to whether Survey Monkey allows for comments, to which
Johnstone agreed to also add a comment section at the end of the survey for additional comments.

Historic & Archeological Resources

Johnstone presented the Historic & Archeological Resources section as sent to the Committee with
changes to the section redlined. Johnstone sated that this is an example of how sections will be
formatted moving forward. He then noted that language is taken from the West Bath Historical Society
with the inclusion of a modern-day assessment which he drafted himself.

Johnstone asked if there were any comments on page 1, to which Estabrook suggested that the third
line of paragraph six should be edited to read “would hunt for their food which required”. Discussion
followed on the final sentence of paragraph six, which the Committee agreed to reword that Samuel
Lombard escaped capture.

Basgall stated that paragraph one should read “Before English settlers arrived”, paragraph five should
read “in high demand” rather than “high in demand”, and that paragraph six should begin “In addition
to the exterior designs being focused on water access”. She then went on to note several other clerical
edits.

Johnstone reviewed edits to page 2 with the removal of the first paragraph inventorying historic
buildings. Zartarian verified the accuracy of information relating to the Littlefield School which
Johnstone confirmed.

Estabrook suggested that the first sentence of paragraph three should read “This structure is eligible
for”. Zartarian asked if register should be registry, which Johnstone confirmed register is correct.
Zartarian and Estabrook added corrections to paragraph four which should read “The nighty-three (93)
acre farmland dates to the early days of West Bath. This site is eligible for the National Register of
Historic Places and is currently owned by the Maine Audubon Society as a publicly accessible site that
can access the New Meadows River.”

Discussion followed on paragraph five with the Committee agreeing that the site of the Lodge be
described as north of the Grange.

Johnstone reviewed edits to page 3 noting that the total number of potential sites was given by the State,
and specific sites not known to the Town have been removed from the description. He then asked the
Committee if cemeteries should be included, to which Hennessey suggested that they be omitted in
order to expedite progress on the plan.

Johnstone reviewed page 4, noting that an asterisk is used to mark those items which will be included
on his checklist. He added that maps may or may not be included depending on how much time is
available to devote to this section.

Meeting Schedule and Next Steps
Hennessey announced that upcoming meetings of the Committee will be held on May 9" and 16" at
6:00pm at the Fire Hall.

Future Agenda Items
None

Public Comment: None

Adjournment: Motion to adjourn at 7:56 pm.



